
    

  

SUMMARY OF THE ACTION

Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission") alleges:

Defendant's daughter ("Daughter") was visiting her parents for the holidays and stayed at

large, international law firm (the "Firm") who was working on an impending merger and
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"Defendant"),·an attorney who is a resident of Carlsbad, California. In December 2008, the
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Optics, Inc. (which hereinafter is referred to by its former New York Stock Exchange ticker

symbol, "EYE"). Because the timing of her visit coincided with the anticipated closing ofthe

Abbott-EYE transaction in January 2009, Daughter performed deal-related work in various

locations in Defendant's home while she was staying there and worked on deal-related documents

that identified EYE by name.

2. In breach of his duty oftrust and confidence to Daughter, the Defendant

misappropriated from her material, nonpublic information regarding the impending Abbott-EYE

merger while she worked in her family home.

3. On January 8, 2009, the day the deal was scheduled to be announced, shortly before

the market was to close, Defendant bought 900 shares of EYE, the company Daughter's Firm was

advising, through an online brokerage account he had not accessed in almost a year. Four days

later, on January 12,2009, EYE publicly announced that it had entered into an agreement with

Abbott pursuant to which Abbott planned to acquire EYE at the cash price of $22.00 per share

through a tender offer. Ultimately, Defendant sold all 900 shares of EYE stock, making a profit of

$11,418.

4. Through his conduct, Defendant violated Sections IO(b) and 14(e) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 ("Exchange Act") [15 U.S.C. §§ 78j(b) & 78n(e)] and Rules 10b-5 and

14e-3 thereunder [17 C.F.R. §§ 240.10b-5 & 240.14e-3].

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

5. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Sections 21 (e), 21 A, and 27

of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.c. §§ 78u(e), 78u-l, and 78aa]. Defendant, directly or indirectly,

made use of the means or instrumentalities of interstate commerce, or the mails, or the facilities of

a national securities exchange in connection with the transactions, acts, practices, and courses of

business allegedin this Complaint.
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6. The Commission brings this action pursuantto Section 21A of the Exchange Act

[15 U.S.C. § 78u-l]. The Commission seeks a permanent injunction against the Defendant,

enjoining him from engaging in the acts, practices, and courses of business alleged in this

Complaint, disgorgement of all profits realized, prejudgment interest, civil money penalties, and

such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and appropriate.

7. Venue in this District is proper pursuant to Section 27 of the Exchange Act [15

U.S.C. § 78aa]. Defendant is an inhabitant of and transacts business in the Southern District of

California, and certain of the acts, practices, and courses of business constituting the violations of

the federal securities laws alleged herein occurred within the Southern District of California.

DEFENDANT

8. Defendant Dean A. Goetz, age 62, resides in Carlsbad, California. Defendant

graduated from the University ofNorth Dakota in 1970 and from the University ofNorth Dakota

School of Law in 1975. Currently, Defendant is an attorney with a solo practice in Solana Beach,

California, principally handing the litigation of personal injury matters. Defendant is a member of

the California bar.

RELATED ENTITIES

9. The Firm is a large, international law firm with offices located in the United States

and abroad, including Los Angeles, California. The Firm served as legal counsel for EYE in

connection with Abbott's tender offer to acquire the outstanding shares of EYE.

10. Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. (or "EYE") was a manufacturer of medical products

for the eye headquartered in Santa Ana, California. It now operates as Abbott Medical Optics,

Inc., a subsidiary of Abbott. Before the January 12,2009 public announcement that Abbott would

acquire EYE through a tender offer, EYE traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker

symbol "EYE."
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FACTS

to the transaction.

participate in family activities.

13. The Firm is a major international law firm and is one of the largest merger and

In October 2008, EYE hired an investment banking firm (the "Investment Bank") to

In late October 2008, EYE sought the Firm's assistance in connection with EYE's12.

II.

A. EYE Sought Strategic Options, Including a Possible Acquisition by Abbott

14. From about December 17 or 18,2008, to about January 1,2009, Daughter stayed at

B. During a Visit by His Daughter, Defendant Misappropriated Material, Nonpublic
Information Regarding the Impending Abbott-EYE Merger

assist it in exploring several strategic options for the company, including capital raising

15. While she was at her parents' home, Daughter prepared the disclosure schedules

could conduct due diligence of EYE. Daughter also assisted in the drafting of the merger

assembled the "data room" at the Firm's offices so that Abbott and its legal and financial advisors

began working on the transaction in early November 2008. Among other things, Daughter

transactions and possibly the sale of the company. During the week of October 13, at the request

of EYE, the Investment Bank contacted Abbott to gauge Abbott's interest in acquiring EYE or

some other strategic transaction involving both companies.

acquisitions firms in the country. Daughter, then an associate in the Firm's Los Angeles office,

search for strategic options, including a possible acquisition by Abbott.

in January 2009, Daughter worked at her parents' house during her visit and, indeed, could not

her parents' home in Carlsbad, California. Because the Abbott-EYE merger was expected to close

agreement, drafted various disclosure schedules, and performed other administrative tasks related

related to the Abbott-EYE transaction, which identified, among other things, EYE's license

agreements, material contracts to which EYE was a party, employment and indemnification
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the transaction.

common area of the home, her bedroom, and Defendant's home office. When she worked on the

"[h]opefully we'll close soon."

16. Daughter worked in several areas ofher parents' home, including a desk in a

Defendant misappropriated material, nonpublic information regarding the

On January 8, 2009, at or about 12:28 p.m. Pacific time - shortly before the close of19.

18.

the lawsuits in which EYE was engaged. Significantly, unlike other deal-related documents

circulated among the members of the Abbott-EYE deal team, the draft schedules that Daughter

17. On or about December 31,2008, Daughter learned that the Abbott-EYE transaction

worked on at her parents' home did not substitute a code name for EYE to preserve confidentiality

and identified the company by name. In addition, the schedules identified the names of certain

individuals with whom the company had employment or indemnification agreements.

agreements between EYE and certain of its employees, EYE's products, EYE's subsidiaries, and

C. Defendant Misappropriated Material, Nonpublic Information from His Daughter
About the Abbott-EYE Transaction and Traded EYE Stock on the Basis of That
Information

Defendant's home office, and spread out her work.

deal-related documents, Daughter would "park" herself in common work spaces, including

was going to close earlier than expected and that Abbott's acquisition of EYE would be announced

impending Abbott-EYE merger from Daughter while she was staying at his home and working on

on January 8, 2009, after the close of the market. As a result, Daughter cut short her visit to her

parents' home and returned to work in Los Angeles on January 1,2009. When she left, she told

her parents that she had to return to work because she was working on a transaction and that
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27 online brokerage account. This was the first time Defendant had logged on to his brokerage
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share and, accordingly, made a profit of$II,418.

EYE stock at an average price of$8.82 per share. At 12:45 p.m. Pacific time, Defendant

143% over the prior trading day's closing price of $8.85 per share.

loyalty and confidentiality to Daughter.

When Defendant misappropriated information about the pending Abbott-EYE

At the time Defendant purchased the 900 shares of EYE stock, substantial steps had

Based on the close nature of their relationship, Defendant owed to Daughter a duty

On February 19,2009, Defendant sold his 900 shares of EYE stock at $21.93 per

20.

24.

21.

23.

22. At or about 5:01 a.m. Pacific time on January 12,2009, EYE announced that it had

D. Defendant Breached His Fiduciary Duty to His Daughter When He Traded on the
Basis of the Material, Nonpublic Information to Which His Daughter Had Access

been taken to commence a tender offer, including, but not limited to, the drafting of a merger

account in almost a year. At or about 12:36 p.m. Pacific time, Defendant purchased 500 shares of

purchased an additional 400 shares ofEYE stock at an average price of$8.79 per share.

entered into an agreement with Abbott pursuant to which Abbott planned to acquire EYE at the

cash price of$22.00 per share through a tender offer. Following this announcement, EYE's stock

agreement.

transaction from Daughter and then traded on the basis of this information, he breached his duty of

price closed at $21.50 on January 12,2009, an increase of$12.65 per share, or approximately
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26. Defendant similarly knew or should have known that ifhe obtained access to

confidential information to which Daughter had access in connection with her employment, that he

should not use that information to his personal benefit.

27. Defendant breached this duty of trust and confidence when he improperly obtained

from Daughter material, nonpublic information about the impending Abbott-EYE transaction and

traded on the basis of this information. -

28. Similarly, because Defendant knew or should have known that the material,

nonpublic information about the impending tender offer came from Daughter (who worked for the

legal advisor for EYE) Defendant knew or had reason to know that the information to which he

had access, either directly or indirectly, about the pending Abbott-EYE merger was material and

nonpublic and that he was prohibited from causing the purchase or sale of the security to be sought

by the tender offer.

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
Violation of Section IOCb) of the Exchange Act and Rule IOb-5 Thereunder

29. The Commission re-alleges and incorporates by reference each and every allegation

in paragraphs 1 through 28, inclusive, as if they were fully set forth herein.

30. At the time of Defendant's trades, the misappropriated information was nonpublic,

held by the Firm as confidential information related to a client representation.

31. The misappropriated information was material - it would be important to a

reasonable investor in making his or her investment decision, and indeed was important to

Defendant, when misappropriating the information. There is a substantial likelihood that the

disclosure of the misappropriated information would have been viewed by a reasonable investor as

having significantly altered the total mix of information available to investors.

32. At all times relevant to this Complaint, Defendant acted knowingly and/or

recklessly.
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1
33. By engaging in the conduct described above, Defendant, directly or indirectly, in

2 connection with the purchase or sale of securities, by the use of means or instrumentalities of

3 interstate commerce, or the mails, or the facilities of a national securities exchange, with scienter:

the securities of EYE.

38. Because Defendant knew or should have known that the material, nonpublic

in paragraphs 1 through 34, inclusive, as if they were fully set forth herein.

thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5].

made untrue statements of material facts or omitted to state material facts

necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the

engaged in acts, praGtices, or courses of business which operated or would

operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person in connection with the purchase

circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; and/or

or sale of any security.

employed devices, schemes, or artifices to defraud;

The Commission re-alleges and incorporates by reference each and every allegation

By engaging in the foregoing conduct, Defendant violated, and unless enjoined will

By January 8,2009, the date on which Defendant placed his illegal trades, one or

c.

a.

The Firm was the legal advisor to EYE in connection with Abbott's tender offer for

b.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
Violation of Section 14(e) of the Exchange Act and Rule 14e-3 Thereunder

34.

35.

37.

36.

continue to violate, Section lO(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.c. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5

more substantial steps had been taken to commence the tender offer for EYE securities.

to EYE, Defendant knew or had reason to know that the information that he received, directly or

information about the Abbott tender offer came from Daughter, who worked for the legal advisor
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By January 8,2009, the date on which Defendant placed his illegal trades, one or

The Firm was the legal advisor to EYE in connection with Abbott's tender offer for

b.

c.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
Violation of Section 14(e) of the Exchange Act and Rule 14e-3 Thereunder

34.

35.

37.

. 36.

continue to violate, Section lO(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.c. § 78j(b)] and Rule IOb-5

to EYE, Defendant knew or had reason to know that the information that he received, directly or
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indirectly, about the pending merger was material andnonpublic and that he was prohibited from

causing the purchase or sale of the security to be sought by the tender offer.

39. By engaging in the foregoing conduct, Defendant violated, and unless enjoined will

continue to violate, Section 14(e) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78n(e)] and Rule 14e-3

thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.14e-3].

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, the Commission respectfully requests that the Court enter a Final

Judgment:
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Permanently restraining and enjoining Defendant from, directly or indirectly, engaging in

conduct in violation of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule lOb-5

thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5] and from engaging in conduct in violation of Section 14(e) of

the Exchange Act [15 u.s.c. § 78n(e)] and Rule 14e-3 thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.14e-3];

II.

Ordering Defendant to disgorge the unlawful trading profits derived from the activities set

forth in this Complaint, together with prejudgment interest thereon;

III.

Ordering Defendant to pay a civil penalty pursuant to Section 21A of the Exchange Act [15

U.S.C. § 78u-l]; and
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IV.

Granting such other and further relief as the Court may deem just, equitable, and necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

By: /s/ Michael J. Rinaldi
Daniel M. Hawke
Elaine C. Greenberg
Michael J. Rinaldi
Colleen K. Lynch
David W. Snyder

Attorneys for Plaintiff
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION
Mellon Independence Center
701 Market Street, Suite 2000
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19106
Telephone: (215) 597-3100
Facsimile: (215) 597-2740
RinaldiM@sec.gov

Dated: June 3, 2011
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